ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2004
8:00 a. m

TAPE(S) 04- 889
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Hollis French

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 217
"An Act relating to genetic privacy; and anending Rule 82,
Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure, and Rule 508, Alaska Rules of
Appel | ate Procedure.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 333
"An Act relating to judicial relief before final admnistrative
deci sions of state agencies."”

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 260(JUD)
"An Act relating to imunity for free health care services
provided by certain health care providers; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 252(STA)
"An Act relating to the terns and duties of the nenbers of the
State Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers and Land
Surveyors. "

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 217

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2004



SHORT TI TLE: GENETI C PRI VACY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

05/ 09/ 03 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

05/ 09/ 03 (S) HES, JUD

01/ 28/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 28/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 217 (HES) Qut of Conmittee
01/ 28/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

01/ 30/ 04 (S HES RPT CS 1DP 1NR 2AM NEW TI TLE
01/ 30/ 04 (S) DP: DYSON, NR GUESS;

01/ 30/ 04 (S) AM GREEN, W LKEN

02/ 06/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 06/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 06/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 18/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 18/ 04 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 25/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 333

SHORT TITLE: |F UNREAS. AGENCY DELAY, COURT DECI DES
SPONSOR('s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

02/ 16/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 25/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HB 260

SHORT TITLE: | MMUNI TY FOR PROVI DI NG FREE HEALTH CARE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

04/ 11/ 03 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 11/ 03 (H L&C, JUD

04/ 28/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 28/ 03 (H Moved CSHB 260(L&C) CQut of Conmittee
04/ 28/ 03 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 30/ 03 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) 2NR 5AM

04/ 30/ 03 (H NR. LYNN, ROKEBERG AM GATTO,

04/ 30/ 03 (H) CRAWFORD, GUTTENBERG, DAHLSTROM

04/ 30/ 03 (H) ANDERSON

05/ 09/ 03 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 09/ 03 (H) Moved CSHB 260(JUD) Qut of Committee
05/ 09/ 03 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

05/ 10/ 03 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) 6DP

05/ 10/ 03 (H) DP: HOLM GARA, OGG, GRUENBERG,

05/ 10/ 03 (H SAMUELS, MCGUI RE

05/ 19/ 03 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

05/ 19/ 03 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHB 260( JUD)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2004



05/ 20/ 03

(S)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

05/ 20/ 03 (S) HES, JUD

01/ 28/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 28/ 04 (S Moved SCS CS HB260 (HES) Qut of
Comm ttee

01/ 28/ 04 (S M NUTE( HES)

01/ 30/ 04 (S HES RPT SCS 2DP 2AM SAME TI TLE

01/ 30/ 04 (S) DP: DYSON, W LKEN, AM GREEN, GUESS

02/ 25/ 04 (S JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: HB 252

SHORT TI TLE: OCC LI CENSING TERMS OF BD & CONT. EDUC

SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MOGUI RE

04/ 08/ 03 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 08/ 03 (H) L&C, STA

05/ 02/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

05/ 02/ 03 (H) Moved CSHB 252(L&C) CQut of Conmittee
05/ 02/ 03 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

05/ 05/ 03 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 4DP

05/ 05/ 03 (H DP: LYNN, DAHLSTROM ROKEBERG, ANDERSON
05/ 07/ 03 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

05/ 07/ 03 (H Moved CSHB 252(STA) Qut of Conmittee
05/ 07/ 03 (H) M NUTE( STA)

05/ 08/ 03 (H) STA RPT CS(STA) NT 4DP 1NR

05/ 08/ 03 (H DP: DAHLSTROM LYNN, SEATON, WEYHRAUCH;
05/ 08/ 03 (H) NR. BERKOW TZ

05/ 15/ 03 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

05/ 15/ 03 (H VERS| ON:  CSHB 252( STA)

05/ 16/ 03 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

05/ 16/ 03 (S) L&C, JUD

05/ 19/ 03 (S) L&C RPT 2DP 1NR

05/ 19/ 03 (S) DP: SEEKINS, STEVENS G NR FRENCH
05/ 19/ 03 (S) L&C AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 211

05/ 19/ 03 (S) Moved SCS(L&C) Out of Cormittee

05/ 19/ 03 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 18/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 18/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 25/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 260

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2004



M. M ke Haugen

Al aska Physici ans and Surgeons

4325 Laurel St.

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports CSHB 260(JUD)

Ms. Marie Darlin

AARP — Capital City Task Force

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports CSHB 260( JUD)

Ms. Pat Senner

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports CSHB 260( JUD)

M. Dave Stancliff

Staff to the Admi nistrative Regul ati on Review
Comm ttee

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 333

M . Doug Wboliver

Al aska Court System

303 K St.

Anchorage, AK 99501-2084

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions in regard to SB 333

M . Dan Hought on

Chi ef Financial Oficer

Al aska Regi onal Hospit al

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 333

Senat or Donny O son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 217

Ms. Robbi e Meyer

American Council of Life Insurers

No address provi ded

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about SB 217

Ms. Jennifer Rudi nger
Al aska Civil Liberties Union

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2004



Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about SB 217

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-8, SIDE A

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Senators Ogan, Ellis,
French and Chair Seekins were present. The first order of

busi ness to cone before the commttee was CSHB 260(JUD).

"#HB 260
CSHB 260(JUD) - I MVUNI TY FOR PROVI DI NG FREE HEALTH CARE

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, sponsor of HB 260, explained the
purpose of HB 260 is to encourage health care providers to
provi de services to Al askans who would not otherwi se be able to
obtain proper health care. It does so by offering inmmnity to
liability for civil damages resulting from an act of om ssion.
HB 260 is consistent with the Volunteer Protection Act passed by
Congress in 1997. The bill requires witten notification to
patients of the provider’s imunity to civil prosecution.

[ SENATOR THERRI AULT arri ved. ]

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the Senate HESS Conmittee nade a
change to Section 3; it clarifies that the health care nust be
provided in conjunction with a governnent entity or non-profit
organi zation and the health care provider is acting within the
scope of the provider’s actively maintained license. Nothing in
the legislation provides imunity for the agency or the non-
profit agency; they nmust <carry nmalpractice insurance. CSHB
260(JUD) will allow health care providers, especially those who
have retired and no longer carry nalpractice insurance, to
provi de services.

He noted the sideboards in the legislation are that immunity
does not apply to the organization or to gross negligence or
wllful acts. He indicated nenbers’ packets contain a definition
of gross negligence and wllful act wused throughout the
statutes. He offered to answer questions.

SENATOR OGAN said he did not see any specific nmention of retired

health care providers in CSHB 260(JUD) and asked if the bill
will apply to others.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it provides inmmunity for anyone
working within the scope of his or her license. It is especially
critical for retired nedical providers because many of them do
not carry nedical nmalpractice insurance. He pointed out it wll
not prevent conpensation for expenses, so that a community could
provide transportation and housing to a nedical professional
when traveling to the community to provide services but the term
“conpensation” is well defined in the |egislation.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how it mght apply to a health care
provi der who offered free services on a cruise ship and whet her
t hat person would get a free cruise and be covered.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted *“conpensation” neans receiving
sonet hing of value, which is defined in the federal |aw as well.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if non-profit organizations are required to
carry nedi cal mal practice insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON deferred to M. Haugen for an answer.
CHAIR SEEKINS said he wondered if anyone would be liable if

these services are provided at the facilities of non-profit
or gani zat i ons.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the  Dbill specifically requires
witten recognition by the patient that the provider is not
liable. In addition, the provider mnust be working under the

authority of a non-profit organization or another agency. He
said it does not apply to an individual who provides a service
i ndependently; there must be sone contractual relationship.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how nmany health care providers are
currently offering free services at their own econom c detrinent
and how many m ght participate if CSHB 260(JUD) is enacted.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he could not provide a nunber. He
said nunerous nedical professional associations have contacted
himand they all support this bill

SENATOR FRENCH conplinented Representative Seaton and staff on
t he excel l ent back-up material they provided.

CHAI R SEEKINS announced that the commttee would take public
testi nony.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2004



MR MKE HAUGEN, Director of Alaska Physicians and Surgeons,
said his association represents about 170 physicians in
Anchorage and 2 in Fairbanks. He noted statistics cite the
average age of an Al askan physician at 51. In addition, the
state is not recruiting enough new doctors to replace them Many
of his nenbers are in their late 50s and 60s; he believes many
of them would take advantage of a bill like this. They are not
ready to “hang wup their shingles” and walk away after
accunmul ating a lifetime of know edge. He believes CSHB 260(JUD)
will give physicians an incentive to retire in Al aska and help
the communities that are not well served. A Providence Hospita
study reported that Anchorage al one has a shortage of 160 to 200
doct ors.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how nuch nedical nmalpractice currently
costs for a general practitioner, or non-specialist.

MR. HAUGEN said he believes a general internist pays about
$15,000 per vyear and that the premuns have been increasing
rapidly. He said nost physicians do not carry nmalpractice
i nsurance once they retire.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if a retired physician w thout malpractice
i nsurance coul d have hospital privileges throughout the state.

MR. HAUGEN coul d not answer that question.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he was wondering if the Fairbanks Menori al
Hospital, for exanple, <could allow a retired physician to
perform surgery at no <charge wth the patient’s signed
understanding that the physician did not <carry nmalpractice
I nsur ance.

MR. HAUGEN thought each hospital would nake that determ nation
on an individual basis.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Haugen, as an attorney, if he would
reconmend that a hospital allow that.

MR. HAUGEN sai d probably not.
SENATOR OGAN asked if a paid staff person follows a direct order

of a physician who is immune fromliability would al so be inmune
fromliability.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2004



MR. HAUGEN said he believes the facility would be liable if the
paid staffer is enployed by the facility, however he hesitated
to give a definitive answer.

SENATOR OGAN asked if other states have simlar |egislation.

MR. HAUGEN said Al aska would be one of the last states to pass
such |l egislation. Over 40 states currently have simlar |aws.

SENATOR OGAN asked if any case | aw has been establi shed.

MR. HAUGEN said he has been told that very few |lawsuits have
been brought agai nst physicians who are immunized by this type
of | egislation.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what standard a paid staffer would be held
to — negligence or gross negligence.

MR. HAUGEN said the bill would not imunize paid staff so the
standard woul d remai n the sane.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked where the paid staffer would fall in the
matter of responding to that superior.

MR. HAUGEN sai d he could not answer that question.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that Version V contains a
slight drafting error.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt Version V as the working
docunent before the committee.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that wthout objection, Version V was
before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted on page 2, line 22, the words
“medical clinic,” should be inserted between “in the” and
“governnmental entity.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to make the aforementioned addition to
page 2, line 22.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried. He then took public testinony.

8:23 a.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2004



M5. MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator of the Capital Gty Task Force for
AARP, informed menbers that AARP submitted a witten letter of
support. AARP believes this legislation will help alleviate the
overall need for physicians in Alaska. At |least 43 other states
have enacted simlar legislation, so it has been tried before,
found to work, and created a wn-win situation for everyone.

M5. PAT SENNER, Al aska Nurses Association (ANA), said ANA's
interest in this bill stems from its efforts to have nurses
ready to volunteer in a tinme of need, whether that be a natura
di saster, act of terrorism or disease outbreak. She said the
current statutes have been patched together over tine and
contain holes. It would be helpful to review those statutes and
draft a nore conprehensive set. However, in the neantinme, the
current statutes do not cover health <care providers who
volunteer to care for individuals with non-life threatening
illnesses in times of protracted energency events. For exanple,
after Septenber 11, the Red Cross sheltered air travelers who
were stranded in Anchorage. Those travelers’ lives were not in
i mredi at e danger, but they had a need for health care services.

M5. SENNER thanked Representative Seaton for amending the bill
to include “tenporary energency site,” as its inclusion wll
help health care providers who volunteer in emergency
situations. She said the inportant factors are under whose
auspi ces individuals volunteer and whether they are qualified to

provi de health care services — not where they provide services.
The anended | anguage addresses those factors. Another group of
health care providers covered by this bill would be enpl oyees of

the federal governnent who are covered by the federal governnent
| egal system in terns of nalpractice insurance. Those enpl oyees
do not carry their own nmal practice insurance.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if nurses normally carry nalpractice
i nsur ance.

M5. SENNER said the ANA encourages them to do so but they often
rely on their enployers’ insurance.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked where a nurse would purchase nmalpractice
i nsur ance.

MS5. SENNER said the ANA offers mal practice insurance except for
the delivery of babies.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that with no further participants, public
testinmony was closed. He then said he would hold the bill in

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2004



commttee so that the commttee could get answers to the
gquestion of liability of staff taking direct orders and the
guestion of liability for nurses providing enmergency care.

#

"#SB 333
SB 333-1 F UNREAS. AGENCY DELAY, COURT DECI DES

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that Version A of SB 333 was before the
comm tt ee.

SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 333, told nenbers this
legislation is the third piece of a package of bills he
i ntroduced t hat makes changes to t he regul atory and
adm nistrative hearings process. SB 203 reforns the internal
adm nistrative process with a central panel concept; SB 287
provides for legislative input into the regulatory process; and
SB 333 allows a person to take an admnistrative hearing case to
the superior court if he or she feels caught in an endl ess | oop.

SENATOR THERRI AULT expl ai ned that SB 333 provides a safety valve
in the adm nistrative process. Under current |law, a person has
no access to the court systemuntil he or she has exhausted the
adm nistrative process. However, it is possible that a final
deci sion may never be reached in that process. People caught in
that process often feel that delays are an attenpt to wear them
down. SB 333 establishes an extraction option by allowi ng the

court to intervene. It wll provide an incentive to finalize
adm nistrative hearings and Jleave the integrity of t he
adm ni strative process intact; however, it changes the dynam cs

by putting hearing officers on notice.

MR. DAVE STANCLIFF, staff to the Admnistrative Regulation
Review Conmttee (ARRC), informed nenbers that this reform is
based in part on testinony heard on SB 203. People said they
have been stuck in the admnistrative hearing process for
growng periods of tinme while costs accrue to both state
government and the private sector. The principle behind SB 333
is simlar to the 120-day legislative session limt so applying
atime limt on the executive branch does not chart new ground

In addition, the judicial review process under AS 44.62.300
allows a petitioner to find that a regulation is invalid. SB 333
gives the court wide discretion to determ ne whether or not the
petitioner is making a valid argunent that he or she no |onger
has the financial resources and wll be damaged w thout quick
finality to a decision

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2004



MR. STANCLIFF said he worked wth one of Senator Ogan’s
constituents who cane to Senator Ogan saying he needed to get
his case into court. He said people often feel they are being
denied due process because of the expense and tinme the
adm nistrative hearing process takes. SB 333 will provide sone
assurance for people with fewer resources. He noted that the
cost to the private sector is 3 tinmes the cost to state
government so SB 333 will provide a stable, predictable business
climte.

8:40 a. m

SENATOR OGAN asked if SB 333 could act as a “stand al one” bill
even though it is part of a package.

MR, STANCLI FF said SB 333 could have been incorporated into SB
203 but the sponsor and those involved with the negotiations
felt this matter should stand i ndependently.

SENATOR THERRI AULT clarified that the |anguage on page 2, lines
5-12, contains the conditions that nust be satisfied before a
person can ask for court intervention. SB 333 does not allow a
shortcut; the petitioner nust have satisfied all procedural
requi renents and show that further delay wll cause financial
harm The <court nust then determne that the agency has
unr easonabl y del ayed the process.

SENATOR OGAN expressed concern that “unreasonably delayed” is a
subj ective term

SENATOR FRENCH asked how long a typical admnistrative hearing
t akes.

MR. STANCLIFF said the length of tinme varies a great deal,
depending on the conplexity of the matter, the agency and which
rules apply under the Adm nistrative Procedures Act (APA). He
t hought that a sufficient track record has been established from
which the court can make a determination. He also thought that
the tinmelines that will cone into play with SB 203 will help the
court decide whether an agency has been tinely. He noted the
court could establish a tine certain for resolution by the
agency or decide to take it up. He said a nunber of people have
been stuck in the admnistrative hearing process for over 10
years, and a fair number over 5 years, according to statistics
gathered by the ARRC. Nothing requires an agency to resolve a
matter in finality within a certain tinmeframe. The nunber of
times an agency can ask for information is unlimted, and an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2004



agency can continually remand decisions wthin areas of
expertise. He said if a person has expert |egal advice, he or
she will not approach the court wthout a solid history and
track record of the case.

SENATOR FRENCH said he heard two answers: that the court can
| ook at a track record and that there is no way to tell. He said
if a track record exists, he would like to see a copy. He
pointed out that a court does not do research on its own; it
asks for evidence and whoever brings the best evidence wns. The
petitioner will have to convince the court that an agency del ay
is unreasonable so it will fall on the petitioner to determne
the average length of cases. He sees that as onerous for the
petitioner and asked M. Stancliff if he has done any research
in that area that would give the court sone guidelines.

MR. STANCLI FF sai d he asked the senior |aw judge of Col orado the
| ongest anpbunt of time a person should be held in the
adm ni strative hearing process. He said 180 days.

CHAIR SEEKINS maintained that the courts interpret words |ike
“egregious” or “frivolous” regularly so he does not believe a
judge would have difficulty determning an unreasonable
timeframe. He said he believes SB 333 will provide an incentive
to agencies to make sure their practices are defensible in front
of a judge.

SENATOR OGAN said the Regulatory Conmm ssion of Alaska (RCA) is
one of the nore controversial agencies wth admnistrative
heari ng powers, especially in regard to the telephone industry.
That industry is one of the fastest changing, regarding
t echnol ogy and servi ces.

TAPE 04-8, SIDE B

He said by the tinme the tel ephone conpanies get a ruling, the
i ndustry has norphed to a whole new dynamc and the ruling may
be a noot point. He asked if SB 333 affects the RCA and wl|
notivate it to issue decisions in a tinelier manner.

MR. STANDCLI FF indicated SB 333 touches the RCA and every other
regul atory body in the state. He said SB 333 can save the state
and private sector an incal cul able amount of noney but its main
purpose is to provide a better way for the governnent to do
busi ness and to balance the power of the executive branch wth
the |l egislative and judicial branches.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2004



SENATOR FRENCH asked if the adm nistrative hearing process woul d
continue while the court nakes its determ nation or whether the
proceeding would be automatically stayed upon an action being
filed in court.

MR. STANCLIFF said SB 333 is silent on that issue. He said he
believes the agency would be able to continue and that it m ght
entice the agency to wap a case up rapidly to avoid court
action.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he would want the adm nistrative process
to continue. He stated:

...The fact that you are availing yourself of the
ability to go to court may [indisc.] the agency to
wrap things up. They may realize that their actions
have been egregious and rather than suffer the
enbarrassnent of going to court and being told so,
they’Il wap things up. Wiat we’'re trying to get to
here is the final decision so | wouldn't want this
process to prevent you from getting to a final
decision. It’'s not like a court case, | don't think,
where you feel sonething has been determ ned
incorrectly and you want to stay the whole process
while you get that question answered necessarily on
appeal . So, unless Senator French has sone reason to
do otherwise, | think letting the process forward is
probably the correct thing to do.

SENATOR FRENCH referred to the |anguage on page 2, |ines 24-28,
and said it inplies that the admnistrative proceeding is stayed
because it says if the court decides that a person is not
eligible for judicial relief, the agency shall continue the
proceedi ng. He argued that direction would be unnecessary if the
proceedi ng was all owed to continue sinultaneously.

SENATOR  THERRI AULT t hought t hat | anguage needs further
clarification and said he does not want a court filing to
automatically stop the adm nistrative proceeding.

SENATOR OGAN asked if the court could remand the case to the
agency.

MR. STANCLI FF expl ained that the |anguage on page 2, lines 15-

22, gives the court wde discretionary authority. The court
could enjoin the admnistrative proceeding, which suggests to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2004



him that until it does so, the proceeding continues. He
suggested getting an interpretation fromthe |legal drafter.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the bill contains a limt on the nunber
of times a person can go to court and claim that the
adm ni strative proceeding is taking too |ong.

MR STANCLI FF said it does not.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced the <commttee would take public
t esti nony.

MR. DOUG WOOLI VER, Adm nistrative Attorney, Al aska Court System
said as is the court’s typical practice, it takes no position on
SB  333. He said the Alaska Court System submtted an
indetermnate fiscal note because it does not have a good sense
of how many cases will be filed. He explained that in order to
nove out of the admnistrative setting into the superior court,
the petitioner nust allege the agency is unreasonably delaying
the process and the delay is causing significant and irreparable
harm The petitioner would file a petition but the court is
unlikely to rule wi thout considering the agency’ s rebuttal and
hol ding a hearing to decide whether the delay is unreasonable.
He said it is entirely likely that the court system will only
see a handful of cases, particularly in light of the other
proposed refornms. He added that if the admi nistrative hearings
were not stayed when a notion is filed, SB 333 would spur quick
agency action. He noted, however, that a significant nunber of
people wthin the admnistrative process will feel the process
is unreasonably delayed. He said many hundreds of cases may be
pendi ng before the regulatory agencies and only a small nunber
of those could have a big inpact on the court system The court
system does not have a clear idea of whether this option will be
used judiciously. He said he is putting the court’s uncertainty
on the record in case it is necessary to request relief fromthe
| egi sl ature next year.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked how the court would determne an
“unr easonabl e” del ay.

MR, WOOLIVER said that determ nation would be fact-specific and
made on a case-by-case basis. It may depend on how many tines
the agency asks for information, whether the issue is seasona
and could vary by industry.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2004



CHAIR SEEKINS asked how long it mght take for the court to
create guidelines for future cases.

MR. WOOLIVER said that is possible to sonme extent but superior
court cases are not precedent setting. He said attorneys who do
a lot of work in this area would start to get a sense of
tineliness but attorneys wIll not necessarily present the
petitioners.

SENATOR THERRI AULT believed the expense of taking a case to
court would keep a lot of cases without nerit from being filed.
He then said the purpose behind the central hearing officer
panel is to create a nore efficient system

SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Woliver if he sees any right of appea
froma superior court’s determnation to the suprene court.

MR. WOOLI VER said a person always has one right of appeal to the
suprene court, except crimnal cases or an appellate case.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if the regulatory agency is nore likely to
appeal a deci sion.

MR. WOOLI VER said he believes so.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Woliver to comment on Senator
French’s question about the nunber of tinmes a person could file
a petition and whether he believes the bill should contain a
cap.

MR. WOCLI VER said that is the legislature’s call. He imagined a
first appeal mght not be neritorious but a second one coul d be.
He noted the court has rules to deal with frequent litigants.
The court can require a person to junp through specific hoops
before filing another claim He said the court tends to have a
hi gh tol erance at first but then shuts the door.

The comm ttee took a 5-m nute recess.

VR. DAN HOUGHTON, Al aska Regional Hospital, recounted an
adm nistrative hearing procedure the hospital was involved in.
The hospital appealed its 1991 [Medicaid] rate setting. A
hearing officer heard the appeal in March of 1997 and issued a
favorabl e decision on May 26, 2000. The decision was submtted
to Conm ssioner Livey, who issued his final decision in April of
2001, which reversed the hearing officer’s decision. The Al aska
Regi onal Hospital then appealed to superior court, which ruled

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 25, 2004



favorably. However, that decision was then sent to the
comm ssioner’s office, and the hospital awaits an oral argunent
with a hearing officer. He stated support for SB 333 and said
had the Al aska Regional Hospital had the ability to take its
case to superior court earlier, the agency would have been
notivated to nove the case forward and both parties would have
saved tinme and effort.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that with no further testinony, he would
hold SB 333 in conm ttee.
#

"#SB 217
SB 217- GENETI C PRI VACY

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT noved to adopt Version | of SB 217 as
t he wor ki ng docunment before the conmttee.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection the notion
carried.

SENATOR OGAN asked for an explanation of the changes nmade in
Version |.

SENATOR DONNY OLSON, sponsor of SB 217, infornmed nenbers that
t hree changes were nmade in Version |

* A letter of intent replaces the Ilegislative findings
section in the bil

* Language that required researchers to get infornmed consent
to use DNA information for research purposes was deleted,
because researchers already have such requirenents

e The definition of “DNA analysis” was refined to elimnate
other tests outside of the paraneters of genetic studies,
for exanple a famly history.

SENATOR OLSON added, “We al so have protection for the DNA anal ysis under

Section 3 to make sure that the intent is still there under the genetic
characteristics.”

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if this bill protects the privacy of one’'s DNA
anal ysis, not of one’'s famly history.

SENATOR CLSON repli ed:

The DNA specific is what we're trying to go ahead and protect.
The integrity of that is the main reason for this |egislation.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 25, 2004



What cones out as far as predisposition for other diseases and
ot her problens that you can get through other neans, such as
taking a famly history and going and taking sone of the other
bl ood tests, CBC for sickle cell anema and things |ike that,
is not part of what's in here.

SENATOR OLSON said there are two polarized opinions: one from those who
support protection rights and the other from the insurance industry.
Version | is his best effort to acconmodate those views and tackle the
main issues. He pointed out this legislation is a starting point so
probl ens that surface in the future can be dealt with then

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if anything in this bill would preclude soneone from
using a DNA analysis to contradict famly history.

SENATOR OLSON said that is correct; SB 217 only gives an individual ful
control of his DNA information to prevent exploitation. Al though the DNA
analysis is the property of the individual, the bill contains three
exceptions: for crimnal identification, paternity disputes and for a
medi cal necessity.

Wth no further questions for Senator O son, CHAIR SEEKINS took public
testi nony.

M5. ROBBIE MEYER, an attorney for the American Council of Life Insurers
(ACLI), a national trade association that represents about 70 percent of
the life insurance businesses nationwi de, said the ACLI is conmtted to
the principle of genetic privacy but it has concerns wth the
| egislation. Life insurance conpanies are obligated to keep nedical
information confidential. However, life insurers need to obtain, retain,
use and cautiously share consuners’ personal information to perform the
very insurance functions that consunmers purchase. The ACLI is opposed to
SB 217 in its current formand urges that it be anended to exclude Ilife,
disability, and long-termcare insurers. The ACLI is concerned that this
bill could wunintentionally interfere or jeopardize its ability to
perform critical business functions, such as underwiting and paying
cl ai ns.

M5. MEYER said insurance conpanies are unique in that they are already
subject to a host of federal and state privacy |laws and regul ati ons that
govern an insurer’s ability to obtain, maintain and disclose genetic

information. In addition, Alaska's Dyvision of Insurance is in the
process of adopting a privacy regulation that will govern all insurers

ability to disclose nedical information. It wll require insurers to
devel op extensive security prograns to protect the integrity of custoner
information. Meanwhile, insurers are already subject to a federal
privacy bill and, nobst inportantly, all insurers’ ability to get any

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 25, 2004



medical information is subject to the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (H PAA). She cautioned that the exceptions are not as
clear as they need to be with respect to retaining DNA sanples. SB 217
does not distinguish between the requirenents applicable to DNA sanpl es
versus the results of DNA analyses. That gives rise to a nunber of
anbiguities wwth respect to insurers’ obligations. The ACLI is concerned
about the requirenent of specific consent because if anyone has the
right to revoke an insurers’ ability to retain nedical informtion,
insurers wll not be able to continue to underwite or pay an
individual’s clainms. The ACLI feels the consuner’s privacy with respect
to life insurance or long-term care insurance is addressed by existing
federal law and the new Division of Insurance regulations. She again
asked that |ife, disability and long-termcare insurers be exenpted from
the | egislation.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if insurers sell nedical information.
M5. MEYER said they do not.
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if all ACLI menbers can access each others fil es.

M5. MEYER said ACLI has 400 nenbers so she could not say, but if they
do, it is contrary to ACLI policy and federal |aw

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked how those conpanies can share information if doing
So is against the |aw

M5. MEYER said the HI PAA privacy rule and another federal |aw require an
i ndividual’s consent unless the information is being shared to perform
busi ness operations, for |aw enforcenent purposes or other specific
pur poses.

TAPE 04-9, SIDE A

M5. MEYER added the new regul ations of the Division of Insurance track
the federal |aws. 3AAC 26.680 contains specific provisions with respect
to disclosure of nedical information.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if ACLI believes this bill is not just a redundancy
of other |aws but breaks new ground.

M5. MEYER said she believes it breaks new ground unintentionally by
virtue of the fact that it requires specific consent to get a DNA sanple
or perform a DNA test. Wat ACLI finds troublesone is the revocable
consent to retain and disclose the information w thout any business
exceptions. She repeated that privacy protections are already in place
because insurers are subject to other |aws.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 25, 2004



9:55 a.m

M5. JENNI FER RUDI NGER, Executive Director of the Alaska Cvil Liberties
Uni on (AkCLU), told nenbers the AKCLU is opposed to Version |I for the
follow ng reasons. First, in order to protect an individual’s privacy,
the bill must contain a conprehensive definition of “genetic
characteristic” or “genetic information.” The AKLCU presented a witten
recommendation for that definition in a letter to the commttee dated
February 24. The definition in the bill is so narrow, just about
everything would be covered in the exceptions. Routine diagnostic tests
should require inforned consent from the subject before the DNA is
coll ected, wused, distributed or disclosed. The exenption neans that
informed consent for genetic testing or retaining information is
unnecessary if the genetic information is discovered in the course of a
comon di agnosti c procedure.

M5. RUDI NGER said the AKCLU believes the bill nust include sonme “teeth”
to prevent enployers and insurers from collecting genetic information
and discrimnating against individuals, wth certain exceptions. The
AKCLU maintains that DNA information is a constitutional privacy right
rat her than a property right. A privacy right is suprene over a property
right. She believes calling human naterial property creates a slippery
sl ope. She noted the definition of “person” includes a corporate entity
but does not speak to a governnent agency, which the AkCLU believes
should also be liable for inproper disclosure of genetic information

The AKCLU also believes the law enforcenment exenption should allow
collection of genetic information only for those activities allowable
under Al aska state | aw

SENATOR OGAN asked Ms. Rudi nger:

Some of your conments concern ne. These ethical questions
oppose thenselves repeatedly in various contexts, such as
whet her people should be able to buy and sell human organs,
fetuses, babies, etcetera. O course babies are a person so -
but | guess it’s a little bit undefined whether or not they're
a person in the wonb and | guess there’'s a little bit of an
oxynoron there with some of your positions on those issues but
are you talking about babies inside or outside the wonb? |
mean obvi ously you can’t sell a baby — that’s slavery but....

MS. RUDI NGER repli ed:

...Senator QOgan, we’'re talking about human material. W're
tal king about people, human beings, we’'re talking about

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 25, 2004



fetuses, we’'re talking about DNA in the context of this bill
W' re tal king about human genetic material .

M5S. RUDI NGER said the question involves a philosophical discussion that

may be outside the scope of the bill. She noted the bill refers to
genetic information as a property right. She said Roe v. Wade was not
decided on the basis of property rights, it was based on a

constitutional privacy right. She said a constitutional right would give
this matter the highest |evel of protection.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked about bl ood.

M5. RUDI NGER sai d people sell blood, eggs and sperm and the AkKCLU sees
that as a slippery slope that presents a difficult policy question for
the legislature. She said the AKCLU is concerned about human materi al
bei ng consi dered as property that can be bought and sold because of the
fear that poor people could be induced or coerced into selling their
genetic material .

SENATOR FRENCH said he believes the definition of DNA analysis is clear
inthe bill. He asked if a cholesterol test could be considered as a DNA
anal ysi s.

SENATOR CLSON repli ed:

To a certain degree, we need to be careful here because a
chol esterol test obviously is one thing that gives you certain
information. Even though cholesterol itself, if you think of
it biochemcally, is just an alcohol that’s got some sterols
related to it, but there is the lipoproteins that are actual
carriers of the body fats and so when you start thinking about
hi gh density |ipoproteins, |low density |ipoproteins, the LDL
[indisc.] low density of proteins, you start getting into a
conplicated detail there that’s certainly not the intent of
this bill. But you are correct that in the purest, sinplest
form a cholesterol test is not included.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if his doctor runs a chol esterol test and gives him
the results, the doctor would only be in trouble under this bill if he
used that blood to test for genetic characteristics.

SENATOR OLSON said that is correct.

CHAI R SEEKINS said that chronpsomal tests are routine for certain birth
defects. He asked if those tests would be prohibited under SB 217.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 25, 2004



SENATOR OLSON said not at all. He said the intent of the bill is to
require inforned consent to do any genetic testing.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Senator Oson if he intended to include governnent
agencies in the definition of “person.”

SENATOR OLSON answer ed:

| wote the bill, M. Chairman, and obviously there is a fair
anount of tension between the previous testinony as well as
the testinmony we just heard. The bill is intended to be

exactly the way it is right now because of what’s going on -
the tension that’s there, there has to be a fair anmount of
give and take. There are details on one side that one wants to
go into, details that the other side really wants to get into,
but this is the best-crafted bill we have so far.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he was trying to determ ne whether Senator O son was
| ooking at “the entire universe and not trying to split it, of people or
entities that could collect this information and possibly dissem nate
it.” He asked if Senator O son does not intend to include governnent
agencies into that net.

SENATOR OLSON said that is correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the bill applies to any DNA test required
under the crimnal statutes.

SENATOR OLSON said that is correct. The three exceptions in the bill on

page 2 pertain to |aw enforcenent, nmedical necessity, and paternity
determ nation

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that he would hold SB 217 in comrittee so that
further questions could be answered. He then adjourned the neeting at
10: 06 a. m

#

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 25, 2004



